






























































































































































license. Thus, Microsoft locked OEMs into successive licenses and made it prohibitively
expensive to sell competinglsoftware.

127. Microsoft also withheld or threatened to withhold Market Development
Funds (“MDFs"”) from OEMs that sold applications competing with Microsoft’s
applications. MDFs are payments to OEMs that help fund their advertising and
markéting efforts. Because of the competitive nature of the PC market, Microsoft’s
threats regarding MDFs had their intended anticompetitive effect. Faced with the
prospect of losing these funds, OEMs refused to distribute competing office
productivity applications, as found in the Government Suit.

128. Microsoft also punished OEMs that pre-installed Novell’s applications
by withholding or threatening to withhold technical support concerning Windows.
Customers experiencing technical problems with their PCs are generally instructed to
contact the manufacturer for assistance. Because the operating system controls the PC,
the customers’ problems generally involve Windows. Microsoft’s support is therefore
critical to OEMs, who compete fiercely on the basis of their ability to resolve problems
caused by Windows. An OEM that provides poor support will lose sales quickly.
Fearing the denial of technical support from Microsoft, OEMs refused to distribute
competing office productivity applications, as found in the Government Suit.

129. Further, Microsoft charged smaller OEMs, who were more likely to pre-
install Novell’s applications, higher prices for Windows, as compared to the prices
charged to larger OEMs. By charging the smaller OEMs higher prices, Microsoft
increased the prices of their PCs and limited their sales, restricting this market for

Novell's applications.
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"130. Microsoft's control 6ver applications distributed through the OEM
channel is self-perpetuating. Consumers are less likely to consider a competing
application if they are never exposed to it, and tend to continue using the applications
on which they are initially trained and eventually proficient. Microsoft’s control of the
OEM channel thus protected Microsoft’s monopolies in the operating systems and
office productivity applications markets. Further, Microsoft’s ability to control pre-
installations of its applications locked users into Microsoft’s upgrades, which are
subsequently purchased through other channels and have accounted for approximately
40 percent of office productivity applications revenues.

131. The above-described anticompetitive acts unlawfully hindered the
efforts of Novell to distribute word processing and other office productivity
applications in competition with applications developed by Microsoft. Collectively,
these practices have foreclosed Novell from a large and growing portion of the
distribution channel for office productivity applications. In foreclosing Novell products
from distribution, Microsoft’s conduct has harmed competition, as it has in similar
circumstances, by “inhibiting Microsoft’s competitors that nevertheless succeed in
developing promising innovations from effectively marketing their improved products
to customers” and “reducing the incentive and ability of [distributors] to innovate and
differentiate their products in ways that would appeal to customers.” Gov’'t Compl.

9 37. These acts lacked any legitimate business justification. Their only purpose was to
maintain and/or achieve monopolies in the operating systems and office productivity

applications markets.
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2. Other Distribution Channels
132. Other than through OEMs, office productivify software can be

distributed through the following channels: independent retailers that sell to
individuals and small businesses; independent or loosely affiliated resellers that sell to
larger organizations, including government agencies, larger businesses, professional
associations, etc.; and direét sales to'government agencies, large corporations, and other
large organizations. |

133. Microsoft engaged in predatory behavior in these channels, as well. As
with the OEM channel, Microsoft engaged in similar anticompetitive tactics designed to
monopolize the office productivity applications markets and strengthen the barriers to
entry into the monopolized operating systems market. These anticompetitive acts
unlawfully hindered the efforts of Novell to distribute office productivity applications
to compete against Microsoft’s applications. They lacked any legitimate business
justification. Their only purpose was to maintain Microsoft’s operating systems and
office proeductivity applications monopolies.

3. Internet Browser aﬁd Other Platforms

134. “Java is designed in part to permit applications written in it to be run on
different operating systems,” which threatens to reduce or eliminate the applications
barrier to entry. Gov’t Compl. {7. “Netscape’s browser was itself a “platform’ to which

many applications were being written -- and to which (if it thrived) more and more

~ applications would be written. Since Netscape’s browser could be run on any PC

operating system, the success of this alternative platform also threatened to reduce or
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eliminate” this key barrier to entry protecting Microsoft’s operating systems monopoly.
Id 9.

135. In 1995, “Microsoft attempted to eliminate competition from Netscape
by seeking an express horizontal agreement not to compete.” Id. 11 14, 70-71.
Microsoft attempted “to induce Netscape not to compete with Microsoft to divide the
browser market, with Microsoft becoming the sole supplier of browsers for use with
Windows 95 and successor operating systems and with Netscape becoming the sole
supplier of browsers for operating systems other than Windows 95 or its successors.”
Id.

136. Upon Netscape's refusal to participate in the alleged scheme, Microsoft
set about to exclude Netscape and other browser rivals from access to the widespread
distribution, promotion, and resources they needed to offer their browser products to
OEMs and PC users. Id. q 15, 72-74.

137. “Microsoft invested hundreds of millions of dollars to develop, test, and
promote Internet Explorer, a product which it distributes without separate charge.” Id.
{ 16. But Microsoft “did not stop at free distribution. Rather, Microsoft purposefuily
set out to do whatever it took to make sure significant market participants distributed
and used Internet Explorer instead of Netscape's browser —- including paying some
customers to take [Internet Explorer] and using its unique control over Windows to
induce others to do so.” Id. q17.

138. Microsoft also entered into agreements unlawfully tying its Internet
Explorer software to Windows 95 and Windows 98. It “unlawfully required PC

manufacturers, as a condition of obtaining licenses for the Windows 95 [and Windows
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98] operating system|s], to agree to license, preinstall, and distribute Internet Explorer
on every Windows PC such manufacturers shipped. By virtue of the monopoly
position Windows enjoys, it was a commercial necessity for OEMs to preinstall
Windows 95 [and Windows 98] -- and, as a result of Microsoft's illegal tie-in, Infernet
Explorer -- on virtually all of the PCs they sold.” Id. 19 18, 103-123.

139. Microsoft also misused its operating systems monopoly by requiring
“OEMs to agree, as a condition of acquiring a license to the Windows operating system,
to adopt the uniform ‘boot-up’ sequence and ‘desktop” screen specified by
Microsoft. . . . Microsoft's exclusionary restrictions forbid, among other things, any
changes by an OEM that would remove from the PC any part of Microsoft's Internet
Explorer software (or any other Microsoft-dictated software) or that would add to the
PC a competing browser {or other competing software) 1n any more prominent or
visible way (including by highlighting as part of the startup sequence or by more
prominent placement on the desktop screen) than the way Microsoft requires Internet
Explorer to be presented.” Id. 1 24, 93-102.

140. Moreover, Microsoft entered into agreeménts with Internet Service
Providers (“ISPs”), which allowed “Microsoft to leverage its operating system
monopoly by conditioning . . . [ISPs] to offer Microsoft's Internet Explorer browser
primarily or exclusively as the browser they distribute; not to promote or even mention
to any of their subscribers the existence, availability, or compatibility of a COmpe'ting
Internet browser; and to use on their own Internet sites Microsoft-specific programming
extensions and tools that make those sites look better when viewed through Internet

Explorer than when viewed through competing Internet browsers.” Id. 9 29-30; 75-86.
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141. Microsoft also entered into anticompetitive agreements with Internet
Content Providers (“ICPs"). Microsoft conditioned the ICPs” placement on one of the
prominent "channel buttons” that provided direct Internet access on the ICPs’
agreement “to not pay or otherwise compensate Microsoft's primary Internet browsér
competitors (including by distributing their browsers) for the distribution, marketing,
or promotion of the ICP’s content; to not promote any browser produced by any of
Microsoft's primary browser competitors; to not allow ahy of Microsoft's primary
browser competitors to promote and highlight the ICP’s ‘channel’ content on or for their
browsers; and to design its web sites using Microsoft-specific, proprietai'y
programming extensions so that those sites look better when viewed with Internet
Explorer than when viewed through a competing browser.” Id. 11 33, 87-92.

142. Microsoft's contracts with OEMs, ISPs, and ICPs have unreasonably
restrained competition in the market for Internet browsers. “They artificially
increase[d] the share of the market held by Microsoft's Internet Explorer, and they
threaten[ed] to ‘tip’ the market permanently to Internet Explorer, not because OEMs or
PC customers ha[d] freely chosen Microsoft's product in a competitive marketplace, but
because of the illegal exercise of monopoly power by Microsoft.” Id. 1 35,

143. Microsoft alsd used its office productivity applications monopoly as an
additional means to foreclose Netscape and other competing bfowsers from access to
customers by ensuring that PC users with Microsoft Office already had Internet
Explorer installed. 7

144. Microsoft’s suppression of such potential middleware, as alleged and

shown in the Government Suit, of competing and potentially competing operating
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systems (such as Novell’s own DR-DOS, IBM's OS/2, Micrografx’s Mirrors, and Go's
Penpoint), and of other technologies that could have supported competition in the
operating systems market (such as Borland’s development tools and Intel’s Native
Signal Processing) deprived Novell of alternative platforms for its office productivity
applications, increasing Novell’s reliance upon Windows.
| 145. Microsoft engaged in numerous anticompetitive acts to achieve this

result, such as causing Microsoft software to display bogus error messages when
detecting competing operating systems on a PC; withholding technical specifications in
- the manner alleged above; and locking ISVs into the Windows APIs and thereby
preventing them from developing applications for the APIs in competing operating
systems. |

146. Microsoft’s office productivity applications benefited from unique,
anticompetitive advantages in the markets for applications running on Microsoft’s
monopoly Windows platform, as described above. Microsoft’s office productivity
applications had no such advantages on platforfns that competed with Windows, and
Microsoft’s ability to take market share from Novell’s applications would have been
greatly reduced, if not eliminated, on these other platforms. Thus, Novell's overall
market share would have been highef if there had been a free market for operating
systems.

147. Microsoft caused Novell to lose market share by excluding these other
platforms from the operating systems market and forcing Novell increasingly to limit
its applications to the Windows platform, where Microsoft's own applications

unlawfully benefited from the anticompetitive acts described above.
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148. The above-described anticompetitive acts unlawfully hindered the
efforts of Novell to distribute office productivity applications to compete against
Microsoft’s applicatidns. They lacked any legitimate business justification. Their only
purpose was to maintain Microsoft’s operating systems and office productivity

applications monopolies.

VIIIL. THE DEMISE OF WORDPERFECT AND RELATED APPLICATIONS:
INJURY TO COMPETITION AND NOVELL

149. The foregoing conduct has directly and proximately harmed
competition by suppressing innovation and foreclosing choice in the markets for Intel-
compatible personal computer operating systems and for word processing and
spreadsheet applications. The foregoing conduct has caused antitrust injury to Novel},
specifically by, without limitation: delaying and interfering with Novell’s product
development and sales efforts; limiting the functionality and degrading the
performance of Novell's products; increasing the costs associated with Novell’s product
development, sales and marketing, and customer support; foreclosing Novell from
distributing its products through OEMs; restricting the development efforts of ISVs in
ways that were detrimental to Novell’s product offerings and that favored Microsoft's
product offerings; and coercing consumers who would have otherwise preferred
Novell’s office productivity applications to purchase Microsoft’s office productivity
applications instead.

150. The financial harm to WordPerfect caused by Microsoft's
anticompetitive acts described above is substantial. In 1993, WordPerfect's market
share was approximately 40 percent, with annual sales of apprdximately $700 million.

By 1996, WordPerfect's market share had plummeted to less than 10 percent, with
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annual sales of approximately $200 million -- even though the computer software and
office productivity applications markets had continued to grow substantially during
this period. The financial harm to Novell, however, is not limited to the amount of
profits lost by WordPerfect during the period 1994-1996 because of Microsoft's
anticompetitive actions. As a result of the dramatic decline in WordPerfect's sales and
profits, Novell sold WordPerfect to Corel Corporation in March 1996 for approximately
$170 million -- a precipitoﬁs decline in WordPerfect's value relative to its value of
approximately $1.2 billion as of May 1994. This substantial drop in the value of the
WordPerfect business due to Microsoft's anticompetitive actions is in stark contrast to
the continued increase in the value of other software companies (such as Microsoft)

during this time period and represents additional direct financial harm to Novell.

IX. - CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

A.  Countl: Monopolization Of The Intel-Compatible Operating
Systems Market

151. Novell incorporates the allegations in paragraph 1 through 150 above.

152. Microsoft possessed monopoly power in the market for Intel-compatibie
PC operating systems software.

153. Microsoft willfully and wrongfully obtained and maintained its
monopoly power in the Intel-compatible operating systerhs market by engaging in
anticompetitive conduct to thwart the development of products that threatened to
weaken the applications barrier to entry, including Novell’'s WordPerfect word
processing application and its other office productivity applications, in violation of

Section 2 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.5.C. § 2.
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154. Through this misconduct, Microsoft has harmed consumers and
competition by, without limitation, depriving consumers of the lower prices and more
rapid pace of innovation that competition would have brought.

155. As a direct, foreseeable, and pfoximate result of Microsoft’s misconduct,
Novell was damaged by, without limitation, lost sales of office productivity
applications and a diminution in the value of Novell’s assets, reputation, and goodwill
in amounts to be proven at trial. Novell’s injury is of the type the antitrust laws are

intended to prohibit and thus constitutes antitrust injury.

B.  CountII: Monopolization Of The Market For Word Processing
Applications

156. Novell incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 155 above.
~ 157. Microsoft unlawfully obtained and possessed monopoly power in the
market for word processing applications. |

158. Microsoft willfuily and wrongfully obtained and maintained its
monopoly power in the market for word processing applircations by engaging in
anticompetitive conduct to thwart the development and distribution of Novell’s word
processing applications in violation of Section 2 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2.

159. Through this misconduct, Microsoft has harmed consumers and
competition by, without limitation, depriving consumers of the lower prices and more
rapid pace of innovation that competition would have brought.

160. As a direct, foreseeable, and proximate result of Microsoft’s misconduct,
Novell was damaged by, without limitation, lost sales of its applications and a

diminution in the value of Novell’s assets, reputation, and goodwill in amounts to be
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proven at trial. Novell's injury is of the type the antitrust laws are intended to prevent

and thus constitutes antitrust injury.

C.  CountIII: Monopolization Of The Market For Spreadsheet
Applications

161. Novell incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 160 above.

162. Microsoft unlawfully obtained and possessed monopoly power in the
market for spreadsheet applications. |

163. Microsoft willfully and wrongfully obtained and maintained its
monopoly power in the market for spreadsheet applications by engaging in
anticompetitive conduct to thwart the development and distribution of Novell’s
spreadsheet applicatiohs in violation of Section 2 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.5.C. § 2.

164. Through this misconduct, Microsoft has harmed consumers and
competiﬁon by, without limitation, depriving consﬁmers of the lower prices and more
rapid pace of innovation that competition would have brought.

165. As a direct, foreseeable, and proximate result of Microsoft’s misconduct,
Novell was damaged by, without limitation, lost sales df its applications and a
diminution in the value of Novell’s assets, reputation, and goodwill in amounts to be
proven at trial. Novell's injury is of the type the antitrust laws are intended to prevent

and thus constitutes antitrust injury.

D. CountIV: Attempted Monopolization Of The Market For Word
Processing Applications

166. Novell incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 165 above.
167. Microsoft willfully and wrongfully attempted to obtain and maintain

monopoly power in the word processing applications market by engaging in
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anticompetitive conduct to thwart the development and distribution of Novell’s word
processing applications in violation of Section 2 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2.
Microsoft acted with a specific intent to monopolize the word processing applications
market, Microsoft’s anti-competitive conduct has had a dangerous probability of
success, and Microsoft has in fact achieved a dominant position in the market for word '
processing applications.

168, Through this misconduct, Microsoft has harmed consumers and
compétition by depriving consumers of the lower prices and more rapid pace of
innovation that competition would have brought.

169. As a direct, foreseeable, and proximate result of Microsoft’s misconduct,
Novell was damaged by, without limitation, lost sales of its applications and a
diminution in the value of Novell’s assets, reputation, and goodwill in amounts to be
proven at trial. Novell's injury is of the type the antitrust laws are intended to prevent

and thus constitutes antitrust injury.

E. CountV: Attempted Monopolization Of The Market For
Spreadsheet Applications

170. Novell incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 169 above.
171. Microsoft willfully and wrongfully attempted to obtain and maintain
monopoly power in the market for spreadsheet applications by engaging in

anticompetitive conduct to thwart the development and distribution of Novell's

| spreadsheet applications in violation of Section 2 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.5.C. § 2.

Microsoft acted with a specific intent to monopolize the spreadsheet applications

market. Microsoft’s anti-competitive conduct has had a dangerous probability of
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success and Microsoft has in fact achieved a dominant position in the market for
spreadsheet applications.

172. Through this misconduct, Microsoft has harmed consumers and
competition by depriving consumers of the lower prices and more rapid pace of
innovation that competition would have brought.

173. As a direct, foreseeable, and proximate result of Microsoft’s misconduct,
Novell was démaged by, without limitation, lost sales of its applications and a
diminution in the value of Novell’s assets, reputation, and goodwill in amounts to be
proven at trial. Novell’s injury is of the type the antitrust laws are intended to prevent

and thus constitutes antitrust injury.

F.  Count VI: Exclusionary Agreements In Unreasonable Restraint Of
Trade

174. Novell incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 173 above.

175, Microsoft’s agreements with OEMs and others not to license or
distribute Novell’s office productivity applications or to do so only on terms that
materially disadvantaged these products unreasonably restrained trade by restricting
the access of Novell's office productivity applications to significant channels of
distribution in violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15US.C.§1.

176. Through this misconduct, Microsoft has harmed consumers and
competition by depriving consumers of the lower prices and more rapid pace of
innovation that competition would have brought.

177. As a direct, foreseeable, and prbximate result of Microsoft’s misconduct,
Novell was damaged by, without limitation, lost sales of its applications and a

diminution in the value of Novell's assets, reputation, and goodwill in amounts to be
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proven at trial. Novell’s injury is of the type the antitrust laws are intended to prevent
and thus constitutes antitrust injury.

X. JURY DEMAND
178. Novell demands a trial by jury of all its claims.

XI. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Novell respectfully requests that:

1. The Court adjudge and decree that Microsoft:

(a) unlawfully obtained and maintaiﬁed its Intel-compatible PC
operating system software monopoly in violation of Section 2 of the Sherman Act, -
15US8.C.§2

(b) unlawfully attempted to and did obtain and maintain a word
processing applications monopoly in violation of Section 2 of the Sherman Act, 15
US.C.§2;

(c) unlawfully attempted to and did obtain and maintain a
spreadsheet applications monopoly in violation of Section 2 of the Sherman Act, 15
US.C.§2; and

(d) entered into exclusionary agreements in unfeasonable restraint of
trade in violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 US.C. § 1.

2. Novell be awarded its actual damages in an amount to be determined at
trial, trebled pursuant to Section 4 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.5.C. § 15, along with interest
on such damages.

3. Novell be awarded its costs, including reasonable attorney fees, as

provided in Section 4 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 15.
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4. Novell be granted such further relief as the Court may deem just and

proper.

DATED this /& “day of November, 2004.
SNOW, CHRISTENSEN & MARTINEAU

DICKSTEIN SHAPIRO MORIN &
OSHINSKY LLP

R. Bruce Holcomb
Jeffrey M. Johnson
Milton A. Marquis
David L. Engelhardt

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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